
Page | 1 

Town of Colonial Beach Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Date:  Thursday, May 5, 2016 – Town Center, 22 Washington Avenue 
Time:  5:30 p.m. 

 

 
Present:  Robin Schick, Chairwoman 

Maureen McCabe, Vice Chairwoman 
Bob Busick 
Diana Clopton (late) 
Eric Nelson 
Pam Tolson 

 
Absent:  None 

 
Staff:  Brendan McHugh, Planning and Zoning Administrator 
  Tori Haynes, Planning Manager 
 
Other:  Harry Prassenos, Planning Commission Applicant 
 

 
Item 1:  Call to Order 
 
Ms. Schick called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. 
 
Item 2:  Approval of the Agenda 
 
Ms. Schick added discussion on the garbage/nuisance ordinance and proposal for videotaping meetings under Other 
Topics. She called for a voice vote.  
 
 The amendments to the agenda were approved unanimously. 
 
Item 3:  Approval of Minutes from April 2016 Regular Meeting 
 
Ms. Schick called for a voice vote to approve the April 2016 regular meeting minutes. 
 
 The minutes were approved unanimously. 
 
Item 4:  Public Comment on Planning Commission Matters (Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Item 5:  Committee Reports 
 
Ms. Schick asked if Town Council is postponing reviewing the CIP until after the annual budget. 
 
Mr. McHugh said the CIP is going to be reviewed with the annual budget. 
 
Ms. McCabe asked if they set a date. 
 
Mayor Ham, unofficially in attendance in the audience, said May 17 or 18. 
 
Ms. Tolson said that she and Mr. Nelson planned on inviting citizens to the Public Outreach committee. She said she 
had specific ideas for public outreach programs. 
 
Item 6:  Resolution #29-16, CUP-02-2016, 125 Wilder Avenue – First Review 



Page | 2 

 
Ms. Schick acknowledged that she would be acting as agent for Ms. Marlin for CUP-02-2016 and recused herself from 
all related proceedings. 
 
Mr. McHugh read the following staff report: 
 

PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT STAFF REPORT 

PROJECT NAME: 125 Wilder Avenue Mixed-Use CUP TOWN COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 

CASE NUMBER:  CUP-02-2016 APPLICANT: Robin Schick (agent) 

PROJECT STATUS: 

 

  Preliminary Sketch    Rezoning                           

        

  Preliminary Plat    Conditional Use Permit 

 

  Prelim. Final Plat    Concept Plans 

             

  Final Plat     Text Amendment 

                                                          

  Vacation     Comp. Plan Amend.          

OWNER: Kay Marlin 

LOCATION: 125 Wilder Avenue 

VOTING DISTRICT:  N/A 

PARCEL NUMBER:  3A2-2-87-2 

TOTAL SITE AREA:  4,993 sf 

SITE AREA DEVELOPED:  

CBPA:    RMA 

EXISTING STRUCTURES: Two-story frame dwelling and metal 

   shed 

 

ADDITIONAL SITE DATA: N/A 

FLOOD HAZARD:  Zone X 

CURRENT ZONING:  Resort Commercial 

ACTION REQUEST:  First review STAFF:  B. McHugh DATE: 5/5/2016 

 

PRIOR ACTIONS/CASE HISTORY 

 

REZONINGS:   N/A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: N/A 

VARIANCES:   N/A 

SUBDIVISIONS:   N/A 

OTHER DATA:   N/A 

 
BACKGROUND 

 

Ms. Robin Schick has applied as the agent for Ms. Kay Marlin for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to 

operate a Mixed Residential/Commercial Use Building.  A Mixed Residential/Commercial Use Building is 

defined as: 

 

A building which provides commercial or office space together with one or more residential units. 

 

Ms. Marlin would like to accommodate for four apartments including one master suite apartment on the 

first floor and two office spaces. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 



Page | 3 

The site is zoned Resort Commercial (RC).  For this use, a conditional use permit is required, per Article 7 of 

the Colonial Beach Zoning Ordinance.   

 

The Comprehensive Plan identifies this site as being located within the Historic Resort Commercial Area.  

According to the Comprehensive Plan, development in the Historic District, 

 

 “…should preserve the historical integrity of the area.” 

 

The Comprehensive Plan further states: 

 

“Improve the town’s aesthetic quality to make a positive and lasting impression on visitors to the 

community and enhance the quality of life for residents.” 

 

As well as… 

 

“Attract new businesses and support existing businesses that serve the needs of our residents and 

provide local employment.” 

 

The property was previously a rooming house and has been in a dilapidated state for many years.  Ms. 

Marlin bought it in 2014 and has been working diligently to revitalize it ever since. 
 

Currently, the property does not provide for parking however the property is located adjacent to a 

municipal parking lot.  The Zoning Ordinance states: 

 

Any non-residential use located within five hundred (500) feet of a municipal or publicly owned 

parking lot shall be exempt from this ordinance. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission review this permit and vote to recommend the 

Conditional Use Permit at their regular meeting in June with the following recommendations: 

 

1.  The applicant shall record the To Wit (approval form) with the Westmoreland County Circuit Court 

Clerk’s office within 30 days of receipt and provide a copy of the recorded document to the 

Planning Department with the deed book and page number. 

 

2.  This CUP is for operation of a Mixed Residential/Commercial Use Building. 

 

3.  The owner shall notify the Planning Department of any new occupants within the office spaces to 

determine if the occupant’s use is permitted based on the building code. A building compliance 

inspection may be required based on the building official’s determination. 

 

4.  No type of CO shall be issued until this conditional use permit has been approved by Town 

Council. 

 

5.  The owner shall comply with all Federal, State and Local Laws and/or Ordinances. 
 
 
Ms. McCabe asked if the Planning Commission can visit the property. 
 
Mr. McHugh confirmed that they can. 
 
Mrs. Clopton said it is her understanding that the current zoning is residential. She asked if it is R-1, R-2, or R-3. 
 
Mr. McHugh said no it is Resort Commercial. 
 



Page | 4 

Mrs. Clopton asked if its previous use as a rooming house was in compliance. 
 
Mr. McHugh said they were allowed to have a rooming house under the previous ordinance, which allowed Ms. Marlin 
to keep that use for a certain period of time under the new ordinance. 
 
Mrs. Clopton asked if the construction permit process took place. 
 
Mr. McHugh confirmed. 
 
Mrs. Clopton said she was asking because apparently they weren’t able to get their separate metering. 
 
Mr. McHugh confirmed that everything is on one meter, but he wasn’t aware that Ms. Marlin wanted separate meters. 
 
Mrs. Clopton asked if there are separate entrances between the residential and commercial spaces. 
 
Ms. Schick directed Mrs. Clopton to the layouts provided in the packet. She told Mr. McHugh that this should be a 
public hearing with a formal vote. 
 
Mr. McHugh said it is not a public hearing. 
 
Ms. Schick asked when Ms. Marlin would get the CUP. 
 
Mr. McHugh said it would be at the June regular meeting for Planning Commission, and then it would go to Town 
Council. 
 
Ms. Schick asked why it is not a public hearing tonight. 
 
Mr. McHugh said Town Council had not yet referred it to the Planning Commission, and there wasn’t enough time to 
advertise. 
 
Ms. McCabe and Mr. Busick asked if conditional use permits need to be referred. 
 
Mr. McHugh said he spoke with the Town Attorney, who said it has to be referred to the Planning Commission by 
Town Council. 
 
Ms. Schick requested a special meeting to get the CUP approved as soon as possible. 
 
Mayor Ham said Town Council would be seeing it at the May 12 meeting to refer it to the Planning Commission. The 
Town Attorney explained we were supposed to be referring all these things. Our current bylaws say we cannot bring 
anything up at a meeting unless it’s been discussed at a previous Work Session. We’re going to amend the bylaws to say 
“with the exception of routine Planning Commission matters that need to be referred.” We can do those twice a month, 
at a work session or regular meeting. 
 
Ms. Schick and Mr. McHugh discussed the advertisement schedule and possible dates for the Planning Commission’s 
public hearing. 
 
Mayor Ham said he would suggest to the Town Clerk to begin advertising the Town Council’s public hearing on June 9 
immediately following the referral on May 12. He said this is the same way they handled the school CUP.  
 
The Planning Commission and Mr. McHugh set the public hearing for CUP-02-2016 for May 26 at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Mrs. Clopton asked if Westmoreland County To-Wit recording is required before the public hearing. 
 
Mr. McHugh said it is required after the CUP is approved. 
 



Page | 5 

Item 7:  Resolution #30-16, Comprehensive Plan Amendment, Chapter 1.6 Housing 
 
Mrs. Haynes read the following staff report: 
 

PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT STAFF REPORT 

PROJECT NAME: Comp Plan Chapter 1.6 Housing Update TOWN COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 4/28/16 Work Session 

CASE NUMBER: CPA-01-2016 APPLICANT:    Town 

PROJECT STATUS: 

 

  Preliminary Sketch    Rezoning                           

        

  Preliminary Plat    Conditional Use Permit 

 

  Prelim. Final Plat    Concept Plans 

             

  Final Plat     Text Amendment 

                                                          

  Vacation     Comp. Plan Amendment          

OWNER:   N/A 

LOCATION:  N/A 

VOTING DISTRICT: N/A 

PARCEL NUMBER: N/A 

TOTAL SITE AREA: N/A 

SITE AREA DEVELOPED: N/A 

CBPA:   N/A 

EXISTING STRUCTURES: N/A 
 

ADDITIONAL SITE DATA: N/A 

FLOOD HAZARD: N/A 

CURRENT ZONING: N/A 

ACTION REQUEST: First review STAFF:  Tori Haynes DATE: 5/5/16 

 
PRIOR ACTIONS/CASE HISTORY 
 

REZONINGS:   N/A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: N/A 

VARIANCES:   N/A 

SUBDIVISIONS:   N/A 

OTHER DATA:   N/A 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

In July 2014, the Town was awarded a $10,000 Mixed-Use/Mixed Income (MUMI) Grant by the VA Housing 

Development Authority (VHDA). The VHDA offers the MUMI Grant to support the planning process of local 

governments that have identified an area for revitalization, identified potential local resources to support 

revitalization, and envision mixed-use/mixed-income as a component of the revitalization efforts. 

 

The grant was awarded to the Town to update and amend the housing section (Section 6) of Chapter 1 of the 

Comprehensive Plan. Land Studio PC provided the research and authored the update, which was reviewed by 

Town staff. Staff also worked closely with VHDA to ensure the update satisfies requirements of the grant. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

This Comprehensive Plan Amendment includes new housing and income data from the 2010 Census and 

2014 American Community Survey, as well as an analysis of the current housing stock versus current housing 

needs within the Town. Opportunities for mixed-use/mixed-income development are addressed, as per grant 



Page | 6 

requirements. Other minor corrections were made to grammar and formatting. Copies of the final draft were 

sent to VHDA for review. VHDA did not offer any further notes or revisions. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

The update to Chapter 1 Section 6 has been specifically catered to meet the requirements of the VHDA grant 

and has been extensively reviewed by both Town staff and Land Studio consultants. Staff recommends that 

Planning Commission recommend this Comprehensive Plan Amendment as presented to the Town Council at 

the June 2, 2016 public hearing. 

 
 
Ms. Schick asked if this was a first read and not a public hearing. 
 
Mrs. Haynes confirmed. 
 
Ms. McCabe asked if there could be more citizen input than just the public hearing. 
 
Mrs. Haynes said that as a VHDA Mixed-Use/Mixed-Income (MUMI) Grant-funded update, the chapter needs to 
include recommendations for mixed-use/mixed-income development, which ties into the physical improvement grants, 
such as the revitalization and façade grants. Any public comments would passed on to Land Studio and VHDA. 
 
Ms. McCabe reiterated her concern about citizen input. She said she is concerned that citizens will be blindsided by the 
update. 
 
Ms. Schick said the transportation chapter was done in a similar fashion because it had to meet state requirements, but 
certainly other chapters are more conducive to that collaborative nature. 
 
Ms. Tolson said the updated information was definitely needed, but she wasn’t sure everyone would agree with the 
recommendations. She asked for copies to be made available to the public. 
 
Mr. McHugh said copies are always available in the office. 
 
Ms. Tolson suggested making copies available at the library and through the Facebook page. 
 
Mrs. Clopton asked which 57 units were identified as substandard housing in the Central Area. 
 
Mrs. Haynes said she doesn’t know personally but we have a list through the Northern Neck Planning District 
Commission. 
 
Mrs. Clopton expressed concern that lack of telephone service shouldn’t equate a home to substandard. They’re not 
taking into account wireless service. 
 
Mrs. Haynes clarified that the chapter does take into account cell phone service as a possible explanation for lack of 
landline service. 
 
Ms. Schick noted that the chapter update is in support of Ms. Marlin’s conditional use permit application. 
 
Ms. Tolson said the housing data helps explain why Colonial Beach isn’t more of a bedroom community for Dahlgren 
or King George, because there isn’t enough workforce housing. 
 
Mrs. Clopton said the lack of owner-occupancy is a problem that needs to be addressed. 
 
Ms. McCabe complimented the recommendations, and noted they suggest working with builders and the developers of 
the Potomac Crossing Planned Unit Development (PUD). 
 



Page | 7 

Mrs. Clopton asked about the Potomac Crossing PUD. 
 
Mr. McHugh said it would have to do go through the public hearing process again if they have a new proposal. 
 
Mrs. Clopton asked if the town could rezone the Potomac Crossing property. 
 
Mr. McHugh said the owner would have to apply for a rezoning. 
 
Ms. Schick said the town can initiate the rezoning, but the owners can object. 
 
Ms. McCabe noted one of the chapter recommendations is to contact the owners of Potomac Crossing. 
 
Ms. Schick noted that the chapter recommends eliminating the golf course requirement. 
 
Ms. Tolson said the chapter update would also encourage updating the zoning ordinance. 
 
Ms. Schick agreed that the Comprehensive Plan recommendations should be applied to the zoning ordinance. 
 
Item 8:  Review of Harry Prassenos’ Application for Planning Commission 
 
Ms. Schick asked Mr. Prassenos to approach the podium to review his application and answer questions. She asked his 
address and how long he has lived in the area. 
 
Mr. Prassenos said he lives at 17 Monroe Bay Avenue and has lived in the area for two years.  
 
Mrs. Clopton asked if he would be able to attend the Planning Commissioner training course and occasional irregular 
work sessions. 
 
Mr. Prassenos confirmed that his work schedule is flexible, although sometimes he may have to work. 
 
Ms. Schick asked if he could make the regular Thursday 5:30 meeting. 
 
Mr. Prassenos confirmed. 
 
Ms. McCabe asked what he would contribute to the Town as a Planning Commissioner. 
 
Mr. Prassenos said a lot of his background has been operational planning for the Marine Corps up to the strategic level, 
and is one of his stronger suits when it comes to working within a group setting. 
 
Mr. Nelson said he has worked with Mr. Prassenos on Downtown Colonial Beach and said he would be a good 
addition to the Planning Commission. 
 
Ms. Schick asked what for Mr. Prassenos’ vision for the future of Colonial Beach. 
 
Mr. Prassenos said that tourism will pick up and draw new people and young families to the town. Once people come 
to Colonial Beach they’re going to want to stay. 
 
Ms. Schick asked if Mr. Prassenos is supportive of Town Council. 
 
Mr. Prassenos confirmed. 
 
Ms. Schick read the following paper: 
 
 
 



Page | 8 

PLANNING COMMISSION PAPER 

AT THE REGULAR MEETING HELD, THURSDAY, MAY 5, 2016 AT THE COLONIAL BEACH TOWN CENTER 

 

Whereas, the Colonial Beach Planning Commission has reviewed the application submitted by Mr. Prassenos to serve 

on the Colonial Beach Planning Commission. 

 

Now therefore be it resolved that the Colonial Beach Planning Commission hereby recommends the appointment of 

Mr. Harry Prassenos to the Planning Commission to the Town Council for a term expiring on May 5, 2020. 

 

 

The motion was moved by Ms. McCabe. Mr. Nelson seconded. Ms. Schick called for a voice vote. 
 
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 9:  Other Topics 
 
Ms. Schick opened the discussion on the garbage/nuisance ordinance. She said public nuisance ordinance shouldn’t 
conflict with the garbage ordinance, and maybe they should be updated together.  
 
Mrs. Clopton said the issue is that the nuisance ordinance is being eliminated and replaced with another garbage 
ordinance. She trash needs to be part of the garbage ordinance, it also needs to identify what department is going to do 
the enforcement. Right now the trash ordinance is too general. 
 
Ms. Schick suggested comparing to other towns’ ordinances. 
 
Mr. Nelson commented on a citation he received about a property he is renovating. He felt the ordinance is unfair to 
people who are renovating properties. 
 
Mrs. Clopton said the new ordinance has no means of appeal for citizens. 
 
Ms. Schick said the Town Attorney will send an update. She suggested the Commissioners send her comments and 
recommendations to forward to the Town Attorney. 
 
Ms. Schick proposed a $200/month contract to get the Planning Commission meetings videotaped and posted online. 
 
Mrs. Haynes said she had tried to get the meetings online for free using the same service as Town Council but had 
technical problems. 
 
Ms. Schick suggested using a free service such as YouTube, which is common for public meetings around the country. 
 
Mrs. Haynes reiterated that it was more of a technical issue with the camera, as explained by the Town Clerk who had 
previously consulted with the town’s IT consultants. She agreed that uploading to YouTube would be much easier if it’s 
possible. 
 
Mrs. Clopton asked Mr. McHugh for a tentative meeting schedule with topics to be addressed. 
 
Mr. McHugh confirmed he would put something together. 
 
Item 10:  Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 


